PORT HEALTH & ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES COMMITTEE

Tuesday, 7 July 2015

Minutes of the meeting of the Port Health & Environmental Services Committee held at the Guildhall EC2 at 2.30 pm

Present

Members:

- Wendy Mead (Chairman) Jeremy Simons (Deputy Chairman) Deputy John Bennett Henry Colthurst Karina Dostalova George Gillon Deputy Stanley Ginsburg Wendy Hyde Vivienne Littlechild Professor John Lumley
- Alderman Julian Malins Andrew McMurtrie Barbara Newman Ann Pembroke Henrika Priest Delis Regis Deputy John Tomlinson Mark Wheatley Philip Woodhouse

Officers:

David Arnold Sue Baxter Jenny Pitcairn Julie Smith Philip Everett Doug Wilkinson Jim Graham David Smith Jon Averns Tony Macklin Ruth Calderwood Andy Henderson Gary Burks Town Clerk's Department Town Clerk's Department Chamberlain's Department Chamberlain's Department Director of the Built Environment Department of the Built Environment Department of the Built Environment Director of Markets and Consumer Protection Department of Markets and Consumer Protection Superintendent & Registrar, City of London Cemetery and Crematorium

1. APOLOGIES

Apologies for absence were received from Peter Dunphy, Deputy Brian Harris, Hugh Morris, Deputy Richard Regan, Deputy James Thomson, and Michael Welbank.

Vote of Thanks to the Director of the Built Environment

The Chairman took this opportunity to express Members' sincere thanks to Philip Everett for his significant contribution to the work of the Committee during his time as Director of the Built Environment. The Director thanked the Committee for their kind words and wished luck to his successor.

2. MEMBERS' DECLARATIONS UNDER THE CODE OF CONDUCT IN RESPECT OF ITEMS ON THE AGENDA

Deputy Stanley Ginsburg declared a non-pecuniary interest in matters relating to public conveniences in Bishopsgate as a business owner on Middlesex Street.

3. MINUTES

RESOLVED – That the public minutes and non-public summary of the previous meeting held on 5 May 2015 be approved.

Matters Arising

Public Conveniences

In response to a Member's question, the Assistant Director of Street Scene and Strategy advised that the City of London Police (CoLP) had visited Middlesex Street recently regarding concerns of public urination. He added that warnings had been issued and relationships were established between the CoLP and local business owners. 58 Fixed Penalty Notices (FPNs) for public urination were issued in 2014/15, 26 of which were issued within the Ward of Bishopsgate.

Community Toilet Scheme (CTS)

In response to Members' questions, the Assistant Director advised that new A4 CTS signage had been developed to replace older, smaller signs. He would ensure that the new A4 signs were displayed in the windows of all CTS members as soon as possible.

Massage and Special Treatment

The Director of Port Health and Public Protection advised that a visit to the potentially un-licenced massage parlour was carried out on 20 May 2015 by a member of the Police Licensing Team and an officer from the London Fire Brigade. There was no evidence found that the premises was being used for the provision of activities which would in any way suggest it was a brothel. A Member suggested an alternative premises to be investigated and agreed to consult with the Director regarding its exact location.

4. OUTSTANDING ACTIONS

RESOLVED – That the list of Outstanding Actions be noted.

5. WARDMOTE RESOLUTION

Members received a Resolution from the Ward of Farringdon Within regarding traffic in Cloth Fair. The Assistant Director of Street Scene and Strategy advised that technical officers within the Local Transportation team had been assessing the area. Their findings would be presented for consideration by the Streets and Walkways Sub Committee and the Planning and Transportation Committee. Members were advised that they would receive an update of the outcome at the next appropriate Committee meeting.

RESOLVED – That the Wardmote Resolution be noted.

6. GRANT GIVING: REPORT OF CROSS-CUTTING SERVICE BASED REVIEW

The Committee considered a report of the Town Clerk regarding the future of Signor Pasquale Favale Bequest, in the light of Recommendations 1.6 and 3.1 of the cross-cutting review of grant giving activities to consolidate small similar charities to create a single, larger and more flexible fund to streamline and align governance arrangements.

It was **RESOLVED** that the Signor Pasquale Favale Bequest would not be combined with any other smaller charities to create a single, larger fund and should therefore continue to operate in its current format. Members cited the Bequest's historical importance and the positive publicity it brought to the City of London Corporation as reasons for this decision.

7. SIGNOR PASQUALE FAVALE BEQUEST - RISK REGISTER 2015

The Committee considered a joint report of the Town Clerk and Chamberlain that provided a key risks register for the Signor Pasquale Favale Bequest.

RESOLVED – That the risk register:-

- a) Satisfactorily set out the risks faced by the Charity; and
- b) Appropriate measures be in place to mitigate those risks.

8. CLEANER AIR ACTION PRESENTATION

The Committee received a presentation from a representative of Global Air Action regarding action on air quality, emissions and exposure. Members were advised of several recent projects to reduce emissions and improve air quality, including encouraging drivers to switch off their engines whilst stationary, a four week travel challenge in association with Bart's Health NHS Trust to change people's commuting pattern away from car to public transport, walking, or cycling, and the introduction of garden plants that could play a role on trapping fine particles (PM10 and PM2.5) found in the air we breathe. A document providing further information on these air quality plants would be circulated to Members after the meeting.

In response to a Member's question, the Global Action Plan representative advised that 80% of interactions with drivers asked to switch off their engines were positive, although some taxi drivers were reluctant due to the perception of their customers that they were not ready to take business.

In response to Members' questions, the Environmental Health Officer advised that cleaner Transport for London (TfL) taxis would be gradually introduced due to the requirement for all newly-licensed vehicles to be Zero Emission Capable from January 2018 and the introduction of a voluntary and incentivised decommissioning scheme for taxis older than ten years.

RESOLVED – That the Cleaner Air Action presentation be noted.

9. AIR QUALITY STRATEGY 2015-2020

The Committee considered a report of the Director of Markets and Consumer Protection that sought approval to the City of London Air Quality Strategy 2015-2020. Members were advised that the strategy fulfilled the City of London Corporation's statutory obligation to assist the Government and Mayor of London to meet European Limit Values for nitrogen dioxide and fine particles (PM10) and reflected the high priority placed on reducing the impact of air pollution on the health of City residents and workers. The Director of Port Health and Public Protection noted that a meeting between the Chairman, Environmental Health Officer and a Defra Minister was taking place shortly to discuss a wider London strategy.

A Member suggested that the City Corporation should be seen as taking a lead in reducing the pollution caused by diesel vehicles and that serious consideration should be given to banning them completely. Other Members endorsed stronger action. The Director welcomed Members support for a strong line being taken and this clear political guidance would help with the campaign. He added that the Department of Markets and Consumer Protection worked closely with colleagues in the Department of the Built Environment regarding the development of future pedestrian zones within the City of London.

In response to Members' concerns, the Environmental Health Officer advised that the installation of Biomass boilers was not being implemented at any new or existing premises. In response to further questions, she added that dust monitoring was required at all construction sites and non-road mobile machinery had to meet emissions standards. A bid to fund a new full time post across central London authorities to focus on construction emissions would be submitted shortly.

The Director of Port Health and Public Protection added that an update report to be submitted to the Committee in autumn 2015 could provide additional details of potential action to comply with air quality regulations as it was a rapidly changing field.

RESOLVED – That the City of London Air Quality Strategy 2015-2020 be approved.

10. HEAT RECOVERY FROM CREMATION

The Committee considered a report of the Director of Open Spaces that sought approval to the installation of equipment that enabled hot water created as part of the mercury abatement process to be used to heat the crematorium service chapels during the winter.

In response to a Member's question regarding potential public relations difficulties, the Superintendent of the Cemetery and Crematorium advised that this had been discussed with the Public Relations Office but it was not seen as a risk because the heat recovery method was being used by many other crematoriums across the UK.

RESOLVED – That the installation of waste heat recovery equipment at the City of London Crematorium in order to use waste heat from the mercury abatement process to heat the service chapels, be approved.

11. GATEWAY 7 OUTCOME REPORT - BARRIER INSTALLATIONS AT ROYAL EXCHANGE/EAST CHEAP

The Committee considered a report of the Director of the Built Environment that sought approval to formally close a project following the successful delivery of installations of barriers at Royal Exchange (within the Bank Underground Station subway) and Eastcheap public conveniences.

Members were advised that the actual income for 2014/15, after a full year in operation, was £34,500 for Royal Exchange and £29,000 for Eastcheap.

RESOLVED – That the report be noted and the project be formally closed.

12. DEPARTMENT OF THE BUILT ENVIRONMENT BUSINESS PLAN 2014/17 : END OF YEAR UPDATE AND FINANCIAL OUTTURN REPORT

The Committee received a report of the Director of the Built Environment that provided details of the progress relevant to the work of the Committee made during Period 3 against the 2014-17 Departmental Business Plan.

RESOLVED – That the end of year update and financial outturn report be noted.

13. REVENUE OUTTURN 2014/15

The Committee received a joint report of the Chamberlain, Director of the Built Environment, Director of Markets and Consumer Protection, and Director of Open Spaces that compared the revenue outturn for the services overseen by the Committee in 2014/15 with the final budget for the year. Members were advised that overall total net expenditure for the year was £13.770 million, whereas the total agreed budget was £14.775 million, representing an underspend of £1.005 million.

RESOLVED – That the report and the proposed carry forward of underspendings to 2015/16 be noted.

14. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE COMMITTEE

In response to a Member's question regarding time banding timings for City of London residents, the Assistant Director of Street Scene and Strategy advised that compliance with the Time Banding Scheme had been generally good since its introduction in 2012. However, if there were specific issues that had arisen in a certain location then the Assistant Director for Cleansing Operations agreed to consult with the Member and visit these specific areas of concern to consider what options were available to assist in complying with the Scheme.

15. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT

In response to a question from the Chairman regarding idling vehicles belonging to mobile shredding companies, the Assistant Director of Street

Scene and Strategy advised that an officer working group would be established to consider the enforcement powers available against any breaches to legislation committed by the vehicles. A report outlining the working group's findings would be submitted to the appropriate Committee(s) in due course. Members were advised of the award for best team within the CoLP received by the Operation Broadway team. Members congratulated the team for their deserved recognition and noted the importance of trading standards powers within the CoLP.

Members also thanked the Chairman for the recent Annual River Inspection event and the Chairman thanked all those involved in the organisation of such a successful event.

16. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC

RESOLVED – That under Section 100(A) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public be excluded from the meeting for the following items on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part I of the Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act.

17. NON-PUBLIC MINUTES

RESOLVED – That the non-public minutes of the meeting held on 5 May 2015 be approved.

18. REVIEW OF THE PROVISION OF ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH-BASED REGULATORY SERVICES IN THE CITY OF LONDON

The Committee considered a report of the Director of Markets and Consumer Protection regarding a review of Environmental Health-based regulatory services.

In response to a Member's question, the Assistant Director of Environmental Health and Public Protection advised that the provision of a Pest Control Service would be disbanded to meet savings as it was a non-statutory function. He added that the statutory function of responding to notifications of pests and providing recommendations to building owners would remain but external Pest Control contractors would now have to carry out pest removal.

In response to a Member's question regarding the handling of noise complaints, the Assistant Director advised that most other local authorities dealt with complaints via their Licensing Teams as decisions could be made in reference to the Licensing objectives. The Out of Hours service would remain and complaints would be passed to the appropriate Team. A review would be undertaken to see whether an improved service could be provided by noise complaints associated with licensed premises being investigated and handled by the Licensing Team, rather than Pollution Control.

In response to a Member's question regarding food safety and the donation by retail premises of surplus food to charities, the Assistant Director advised that officers could investigate whether certain foods were being kept at correct temperatures but powers did not exist to force commercial businesses to donate excess food to charity. The Assistant Director of Street Scene and Strategy added that the Clean City Award Scheme co-ordinated best practice regarding food waste, recycling, and sustainability.

19. NON-PUBLIC QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE COMMITTEE There were none.

20. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERED URGENT AND WHICH THE COMMITTEE AGREES SHOULD BE CONSIDERED WHILST THE PUBLIC ARE EXCLUDED A model of a Thames rowing cutter was presented to the past-Chairman, Deputy John Tomlinson, for his support provided to the Port Health Rowing Team during his term as Chairman of the Committee. Deputy Tomlinson thanked the Team for their gesture of appreciation.

The meeting closed at 4.05 pm

Chairman

Contact Officer: David Arnold tel. no.: 020 7332 1174 david.arnold@cityoflondon.gov.uk